Lamphey Palace

Cadw Register             Grade II* listing

They lump together the whole estate, towards 200 acres

There is evidence of very early habitation in this area. The ridgeway from Pembroke to Tenby is a very ancient route, possibly 5000 years old

The Welsh bishops of St Davids built here before the Norman conquest

The palace was expanded and developed over several centuries into a grand retreat away from the bustle of St Davids

They employed many people and entertained, in some splendour, the great and the good

What you see within the walls here was their mansion with its service buildings surrounded by a high security wall

A large deer park and farmland surrounded it. The boundary, a ditch and bank, can still be traced

Large fish ponds and smaller pools

Everything reached a fine peak early in the 16C – the 1500’s.  Then came Henry VIII, the reformation and the dissolution of the monastries

Devereux, the future Earls of Essex, purchased the estate. The Earl lost his head by Queen Elizabeth and the estate was sold to Sir Hugh Owen of Orielton. It became something of a backwater as the owners for 200 years did not live here. Tenants either occupied the ruins or lived in house which preceded the Court

It is not known

Fenton was very unimpressed

In the early 19C Charles Delamotte Mathias inherited a Jamaica rum fortune and he purchased the Llangwarren and Lamphey estates in 1821.  He built the mansion. He moved the entrance and built a lodge so that visitors would approach the house via the lakeside and see it to the best advantage. He planted trees and built a wall around the deer park; he turned the palace yard into a ready-walled garden

Although the ground within is now down to turf, for at least 100 years it was an elaborate and beautiful garden with a formal layout of paths and with further gardens and orchards in an enclosed area to the east

There were numerous glasshouses as you can see on the map

The Royal commission have a C.S.Allen photograph of about 1870 showing the plantings. There is also a 1890 photograph of the western hall ruins enclosing Chusan pals and other exotica

The Mathias family owned estates in the county to about 4’500 acres. They sent their sons to the better public schools and on to university. They were JP’s, DL’s and HS’s. they married well

Early in the 20C – and I don’t know the details – this estate became the property of a younger son. There was no real income from it.  The heir was killed in the Battle of Britain and his brother took over. Major parts of the estate were sold including the Court which is now a hotel

